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Prologue

The smell of death still lingered in the air. The old building looked the same as it did so many years ago. I never thought I’d be here again. I thought I could just forget what happened here. I was wrong. Someone had told me to be here tonight, exactly 15 years from that day, in this very place where the war started. For years nightmares of that night have woken me up, screaming. I still have yet to get over it.

The floorboards squeaked as I walked over to the tall windows. The windowpanes shattered by bullets still haven’t been replaced. I looked out and watched the waves flow in and out of the shore. The moon shone over the sea leaving a reflection on the water. I shivered and wrapped my coat tighter around myself. All I remembered was the blood, …and the bodies. I could never forget one young boy in particular. He couldn’t have been older than my own son, Leo. I can still remember his eyes, staring at me as if I had just taken the most valuable thing in the world to him. The thought scared me. All at once, havoc had let loose and in a split second, he was dead. In that one split second, I knew the fighting had to end and I was the one who had to do it. 

I turned and looked around me and thought, “So this is how I became where I am today. This is where it all started. ” I thought I had heard a noise in the shadows. I tell myself it’s probably just a rat, but I know it’s human. I had my hand on my gun then listened another minute. It sounds so familiar and then it comes to me. It’s….

“Hello Artemis, I knew you’d come. ”        

Chapter 1: 1988

“Hey! Watch where you’re going! ”, Diane grumbled after a woman bumped into her. The blond beauty didn’t even flinch, she wasn’t afraid. If she was, she was one hell of an actress. In fact, she almost seemed to have a smile on her face. “So we meet again, Diane,” she said in a low singsong voice, almost a whisper. From the look on Diane’s face, she didn’t seem pleased with the appearance of her long time enemy, “What the hell do you think you’re doing here Betsy?” Betsy merely grinned.  “I should have you killed right now,” Diane sneered. She looked as if she were about to explode. Betsy gave a devious smile, “Try me.”

At a snap of her fingers, two people were at Diane’s side. Betsy knew them as Constance and Requiem. Constance was about 5’7, had long black hair and was Morrigan’s right hand. She can hack her way into any computer and get through any security system. Requiem was Morrigan’s personal bodyguard and boyfriend. He was tall, at least 6’0 and very handsome with his brown locks just falling over his dark eyes. “He’d make a good addition to our team,” thought Betsy, “too bad I already have another candidate for that position.” 

Betsy was ready to pull her gun on almost anything that moved. She knew she was the best and could probably stop a bullet mid-flight. There was a glint in her emerald eyes. Suspense hung in the air. The only noise was their breathing, in and out, and cars in the distant streets. Betsy’s trained ears, however, could hear Diane’s steady heartbeat, she knew Diane wasn’t scared. Diane was the first to reach for her gun. She started to pull the gun out of her holster, and in a blink of an eye, Betsy had pulled out her own gun and shot Diane in the hand. Diane merely winced in pain, she had dropped her gun. Her eyes were on Betsy, Diane was now vulnerable. 

Requiem and Constance were too shocked to react. By the time Constance did realize what happened, Betsy was gone. She ran to Diane’s side and rushed to get her to Morrigan. On the way, she could have sworn she heard laughing in the distance.  

Chapter 2: 1998
“Betsy, I should’ve known.” Why would Betsy want to see me? The war between the Montagues and Capulets had ended over 7 years ago. I remember these two gangs had named themselves after the two families from Romeo and Juliet. My own “gang” had named themselves the Prince Escalus Gang because we were neutral to both the Montagues and Capulets. We were also called PG and Prince for short. In fact, that’s how the battle between the feuding sides got its name, The R&J Wars. The only difference is that we have no Romeo or Juliet, meaning peace was a helluva lot harder to accomplish.

 “Why did you want to see me?”, I asked her. “I need your help, Artemis.”, she said seriously. “Why should I help you? My war days are over. I have a son, I have a family.” With those words I thought about my son and husband. Elliot was once my one of my best fighters, and still is, not long after the war ended we married, and had a son, Leonardo.

 “The Montagues are starting to regroup and I think they want to take out the rest of the Capulets. I know this is a lot to ask for, but Donovan and Celene are in serious danger.” There was a sense of panic in Betsy’s voice. I had never, in all the years I’ve known her, seen her like this. Donovan and Celene, leaders of the Capulets, had just left for their anniversary trip not too long ago. “I don’t think we should tell Donovan just yet,” I told Betsy, “first let’s try to work this out on our own.”  “All right, but if things get out of hand, I’ll have a team of people to back you up.” Her voice was calmer now, but I could tell she was still uncertain of my decision. I couldn’t believe I was getting involved with this again. “I better go. Elliot is probably waiting for me.” Betsy nodded, “I had better go, too. Thank you Artemis, for everything.”

I rushed to my black convertible in the empty parking lot. It was late, and I looked up. It was a beautiful night, I could see the moon shining against the midnight sky. I forced myself to look away, got into my car and started driving.

I drove through the empty streets and started to wonder. Why would the Montagues go against the agreement? The Montagues and Capulets had formed an agreement in 1990. Since then, both sides have lived in satisfaction, until now. It just doesn’t make sense. What could possibly have happened that would make the Montagues think of such a thing?

I opened the door, as quietly as I could, trying not to wake anyone up. I started to walk into the living room, but stopped in the doorway, “you’re still up?” Elliot was sitting on the couch reading a book. He looked up and nodded, “Who asked you to the warehouse?”, he was fingering an id bracelet on his wrist. I sat next to him, “just some people…nothing important.” I leaned on his shoulder and looked at his bracelet, “Where’d this come from?” I said changing the subject. Elliot looked at the bracelet, “my father” I looked at him curiously, but he had a strange look in his eyes. It could have just been me, but I swore I saw a glint of anger in his eyes. 

Chapter 3: 1988

Montague Headquarters, an apparently old rundown apartment building……….
“How the hell did this happen?!” Morrigan screamed. “Uh….. Betsy sorta shot Diane ….” Requiem was always like this when Morrigan was mad. “Well, duh! I can see that. What do you think I am, stupid?” “No, of course not……uhhh…..it’s just that…ummm…. I love you?…”, he said with big, puppy dog eyes, he looked as if he was about to cry. “Awwwww. Now how can I get mad at such a cute face?” Morrigan said in a sweet voice and kissed Requiem on the cheek. Requiem smiled, though a little uneasy. In the background, Requiem could hear giggling, but ignored it.

The Montagues’ headquarters was no more than the basement of an old apartment building. The Montagues are often falsely accused of being poor. This was untrue. The group started out as a street gang, but made their way up. However, they didn’t become rich by being stupid. The apartment building belongs to the whole group and it’s where they live. So, don’t think they’re poor, they’re actually quite clever. In this way the group is close together and easy to reach in case of emergencies. Another advantage is people recognize it as just another building in the slums of New York.

“I was just wondering, Morrigan, what was Betsy doing around here anyway. She never comes here, unless she’s on assignment.” Constance said calmly from the other side of the room. She removed the bloody rag from Diane’s hand, “Amazing! Her accuracy is as good as rumored. You were lucky, Diane. She could’ve taken your whole hand off.” “No, she’s the lucky one to get away with her life. Next time the bitch isn’t going to be so lucky.” Diane sneered. 

“You have a good point, Constance. Why would Betsy come here, just to shoot Diane’s hand? That’s not her style. Something’s going on here and I don’t like it.” Morrigan said, ignoring Diane. “Neither do I. Why don’t I take Kain and Sterling and go pay a visit to a certain Donovan?” asked Requiem, now leaning against the brick wall. “Good idea. Take a drive over, but lay low. Wait a minute, who’s Sterling?” Morrigan asked. “I guess you mean me.”

 Morrigan turned around and saw an African-American man about 5’9 in height. Then out of nowhere, pulled out his gun and shot the brick wall, just brushing Requiem’s ear, but leaving him without a scratch. “WHAT THE FUCK WAS THAT?!” no one has ever seen Requiem blow up like that. “The shot of a real gunfighter. Anyway, you told me to show Morrigan my skills ” Sterling responded with a cool, calm voice. “Yeah, but I meant something not involving almost loosing an ear! Got it?!”

 “Now Requiem. You did ask the man to show his skills, and that is was he did. Isn’t it?, ” Morrigan asked. “Well…. Yeah, but…”, Requiem stuttered. “Well there you have it. So quit your complaining. Now Sterling, tell me more about yourself.” Morrigan put her arm through Sterling’s and turning around she looked at Requiem, “oh, take Constance with you, you’ll need her skills to get past their security system.”  “No! Let me go! I’m a better hacker than Constance.” This came from Cyrus. A tall woman with long curly hair was now standing.  Morrigan looked at her, “Ok Cyrus, you go, but don’t screw up.”, with that they walked out of the room.

By this time Kain was hysterical. Requiem turned around and gave Kain such a look that he immediately stopped laughing. Everybody knew Requiem was naturally weak in conversations, but when he’s in a bad mood one can only warn you. Requiem started walking towards Kain and everybody held their breaths. He walked past him to the doorway, then glanced back, “Coming Kain? Unless, of course, you’d like to leave in a body-bag because I can have that arranged.” Kain laughed nervously and ran past Requiem and straight out the door. Requiem smiled deviously at the others then left.

 “Do you think Kain will be all right?” Constance asked worriedly. Diane laughed, “Of course he will. Requiem never really seriously hurt anyone over a silly conversation, well at least not this month.” Constance looked at Diane wide eyed, “What do you mean not this month?!” “I was kidding Constance! Do you always act this neurotic, or just when it involves Kain?” Diane asked. “ALL THE TIME!” which everybody yelled in unison. “Ha. Ha. Very funny.” Constance responded unsmiling. She turned around and marched out of the room. “That’s getting to be pretty popular, isn’t it?” said Ashe, a rookie trying to make his way to the top, asked. Diane just laughed.

Chapter 4: 1998

I woke with a million questions in my mind. I tried to decide if I should tell Elliot about what happened last night. He’s probably curious to know who asked me to meet them at the old warehouse in the middle of the night. I took a shower and headed downstairs. The house smelled wonderful, and I knew Elliot had made breakfast. He was very talented chef. I walked into the kitchen and saw Leonardo eating at the table and Elliot at the stove. Elliot heard me a swung around, saw me, and smiled. “I hope you’re hungry.” “I’m famished. I was so busy at the office, yesterday, that I didn’t get a chance to eat.”, I said without a flinch. 

Elliot and I had agreed not to tell Leonardo of our true pasts. The last thing we wanted was our son growing up in life of guns and death. So we made up our pasts, for Leo’s sake. Elliot told people he grew up in the streets of Manhattan and went to law school where he met me. He said he had given up law after I had Leo. The truth is that I was more involved in the war than he was, and my job was to make sure no one broke the contract. People think I’m a high paid lawyer. Elliot raised Leo most of the time, making sure he got a good education and kept him off the streets. I wondered if I had done the right thing, having Leo. 

Leonardo looked up at me with shining brown eyes and a smile across his face. ‘Hi mom.” I looked at him and knew I had done the right thing. “Isn’t the bus going to be here soon?” He looked at his watch and ran into the living room to get his backpack. He came, running towards the door. “Forgetting something?” I held up his lunch and smiled. He walked over to me, took his lunch, kissed me on the cheek and ran out the door. “Don’t you just love being a parent?” Elliot wrapped his arms around me and smiled, “I wouldn’t give it up for anything.” I turned around and kissed him gently on the lips. “Good. Neither would I.”

We walked to the living room and sat on the rug by the fireplace. Elliot tossed in a match. “So, who wanted to see you?” he brought up again casually. I took a moment to think and said, “Celene and Donovan. They wanted to say goodbye before they left for the airport. They asked to meet late to make sure no one was following them or me. I could easily tell if someone was tailing me on an empty street.” I know I lied, but I also know if Elliot knew the truth, he wouldn’t let me get involved without him to protect me. I didn’t like to lie, but if something happened to me, I needed Elliot to raise Leonardo. 

“Oh, before I forget, Seven called while you were in the shower. He wants to take Leo out this Saturday for lunch.” “Don’t get me wrong, I love my brother, but I don’t like the thought of him being around our son.” Elliot saw the worried look on my face, “He is Leo’s uncle, but if you like, I’ll go along to make sure nothing goes wrong.” I felt a little relieved knowing Elliot would be there. 

I grew up with Seven, and despite our five-year age gap, we were very close. He was a rough child and is still. I don’t like Seven being around Leo. I may sound a little protective, but I am his mother. 

I still remember when Seven was a part of the Princes. He was so violent, so savage. He’d kill a person without the slightest feeling of guilt. When he killed, he didn’t just kill them. No, he slaughtered them. The saddest part is he did the same with everybody, even children and never regretted any of it. It came to the point where I was forced to dismiss him from the team. The PGs weren’t that sort of team. So he left, and never came back. At first I worried about him, but he wrote, and I knew I could go on.

Most people don’t believe Seven is my brother. I could see why. We’re total opposites. Not just in personality, in looks too. I have long black hair and blue, almost violet eyes. Seven, on the other hand, has strawberry-blond hair and hazel eyes. The reason is because he’s my stepbrother, we’re not at all blood related.

The ringing of the phone interrupted my thoughts. I picked up the phone. “Hello?” “Artemis! I have the greatest news. I’m getting married!” Seven sounded excited, and for the first time ever, he sounded truly happy. I sat up in surprise “Married?! To who?” “Don’t be too shocked, but….  Angel.”       

Chapter 5: 1988

Capulet Headquarters, also mansion, belonging to Donovan…..
“Checkmate! That’s the fifth game I’ve won, Chien. Give it up, you can’t win.” Donovan was getting bored. He needed somebody who was a challenge. Celene was the only real challenge of the Capulets, and she was busy. He frowned at the thought that Chien was the only one brave enough to challenge him. “You know I never give up without a fight. Come on, set up for another round.” The good thing about Chien is that he never gives up if he thinks he can win.

“Give it up Chien, you know you can’t win!” Celene yelled from the other side of the enormous room, interrupting herself from her work. “So, and your point is……? Hey Donovan, what’s Celene doing anyway?” “Oh, probably checking for mistakes in my paperwork.” Almost in a whisper, he said, “That’ll keep her busy for awhile.” “Did you say something, Chien?”, Donovan asked, looking up. “Uh…… noooooo….,” responded Chien with as much of an innocent face as he could pull off. “Donovan, be a dear and go buy me some more white-out?” Celene called out and then under her breath she muttered, “Try a gallon.”

Unexpectedly, Betsy entered the room. “No need to applaud. I know I’m the best.” “I take it you were successful in your mission?”, Donovan asked, studying the chess game in front of him. “Of course Donovan, have I ever failed you before? I think not. I did exactly as you ordered. I shot Diane in her hand, that’ll slow down the Montagues a bit. If that’s the team’s best shot, it’s amazing the Montagues haven’t given up already.” she said. “ The Montagues have pride, Betsy. They won’t go without a fight and I respect them for that.” Donovan commented, finally looking up.
“I was wondering, Donovan, how is Prince involved in the battle?” Betsy asked, now sitting on the floor. Donovan sat back in his chair and smiled, “Well, it’s actually along story, but I suppose it started when Artemis grew up together with Morrigan. Artemis became the family Morrigan never had. You know that Morrigan’s parents died in a car crash when she was young. Since she had no living relatives, Morrigan was sent to an orphanage. 

They were like sisters during those years, but those days ended when Artemis went on to an out-of-state college while Morrigan attended NYU. At first they wrote almost every week, but as time went by, the letters numbered fewer and fewer. Artemis was in college when she met Maggrig and me at a campus party. We were juniors and she was a sophomore, we felt sorry for her because she looked so alone. So we decided to converse with her and ended up having a lot of fun. For the next few years we all went through college together. She was the most skilled person on the computer that I've ever known. 

“After Maggrig and I graduated, we moved to New York City where I met Celene. I didn’t hear from Artemis for almost two years when I received a letter from her. She had gone to visit Morrigan and found out she had joined a gang. I met with Artemis and advised her not to get too involved with Morrigan’ s gang. I had heard of the gang, and they were trouble. So, I sent Maggrig with her to find out more about the gang. Turns out, Maggrig and Artemis made a good team and decided to investigate further. That’s how Artemis formed the PGs (Prince Gang).” Betsy was sitting cross-legged on the rug and sighed, “I love a good story. One more question, where did Seven and Colleen come from?” Donovan smiled, “Well, Colleen is Elliot’ s older sister and believe it or not, Seven is Artemis’ s brother.”

Donovan leaned back in his chair and ran his fingers through his dark hair. “You look surprised Betsy.” He commented, seeing Betsy’s eyes widen. “Seven can’t be Artemis’s brother! They’re nothing alike!” she finally said. Donovan laughed, “I know, I know. I didn’t believe it at first either, but it’s true.” Betsy was about to say something but was interrupted by the phone, Celene picked up, “Hi Artemis…”

Just then they heard a crash from the hallway and yelling. Donovan already had his gun out, as did Chien and Betsy. Four people came charging in, four Montagues. Donovan knew they were equally matched in number. However, skill wise he had the upper hand. Requiem could match toe-to-toe with the best, Kain he knew was only about average, Cyrus was a fairly good hand-to-hand combat fighter, but she was nothing against Celene. And there was another man he didn’t know. Donovan knew the Montagues had screwed up. They were probably trying to sneak in and were caught. Morrigan wouldn’t have sent a rookie straight into battle. 

They all had their guns in hand. Tension was in the air. Requiem knew they didn’t have a chance, “Guys, stand down.” “What?!”, Kain exclaimed. Requiem repeated himself, “I said Stand down!”  Kain didn’t listen and pointed his gun at Donovan. Donovan let his arm hang at his side, though still holding his gun, “You want to shoot Kain? Shoot. Go ahead.” Requiem called out, “No don’t do it Kain! It’ a trap!”, but it was too late. Just as Kain started pulling the trigger, Kain was shot dead from behind. His body fell to the floor revealing Falcon as the killer. Falcon was the best guard of Donovan’s, hell, he’d give his life protecting Donovan.

       “Damn it Kain, you should’ve listened”, Requiem thought to himself. Cyrus stared at Chien. She still had her gun pointed at him, and he had his gun on Sterling. Cyrus smiled and pulled the trigger. Chien went flying backwards, his gun going off. Cyrus tried to attack Betsy, but was stopped by a lethal kick to the head by Celene. No one saw where Chien ’s shot had gone until they noticed Donovan wincing. The shot had skimmed his head, leaving blood dripping down the side of his face. “Donovan!” Celene cried out. She ran to his side. “I’m fine.” He said gruffly. Requiem laid his gun quietly on the floor, “You win Donovan, let me take my men home.”  Donovan nodded, “Falcon, get some men to take the bodies to the Montague headquarters, then accompany the others home.” Just as soon as everyone was gone but him and Celene, Donovan collapsed onto the ground.  

Chapter 6: 1998

“You may kiss the bride,” the pastor said with a smile on his face. Seven and Angel had a traditional wedding (at Angel’s insistence). It was a beautiful ceremony, though still I wonder if they were right for each other. Well, maybe some of her gentleness will rub off on Seven. I’m still surprised Seven married, and Angel none the less! She was a pretty young woman, twenty-two when she joined the PGs. She had short light brown hair and sparkling brown eyes, a very energetic girl if I remember correctly. 

The reception was nothing like the wedding and obviously arranged by Seven. He had hired a live band, Savage Garden, to play at the party. I loved the dresses chosen for the bridesmaids who were close friends of the bride. Ariana (Angel’s sister) was the maid of honor and Rochelle and Constance were bridesmaids. On the groom’s side was Lance, Argon, and Julian. I found Ariana especially annoying. She was the gossipy, nonstop talker, but I didn’t say anything because she was the sister of Angel (and also the point I didn’t need another person mad at me). 

“Seven! Congratulations!” I  called to my brother. He came over and gave me a big bear hug like when we were kids. “Yep, I guess this means no more all-nighters at bars, huh?” he said, loosening his grip. “Definitely not. So you finally got married. How did you get Angel to marry you? Did you drug her?” I said sarcastically. “Very funny.” he said with a straight face. Then we both broke out laughing. 

“I don’t know.” Seven started, “I never thought I could get into a girl like Angel, but I guess I’m stuck.” I smiled, “if she makes you happy, it really doesn’t matter.”  Two rough looking men walked over, “Hey, Seven! What’s up? Who’s the pretty lady?” I smiled through clenched teeth, “Artemis. I’m Seven’s sister.” The taller one started looking nervous, “really? Uh…..I never knew you had a sister, Sev?” Seven shrugged, “Does it matter?” I smacked him, “Does it matter?!”  Never mind. I’m going to check on Leo.” And started for the tents. 

Elliot stood leaning against a pole with his hands in his pockets. Leo sat on the grass, whose tie had mysteriously disappeared, was playing solitaire. I hugged Elliot, “Ready to go?” He rolled his eyes and kissed me on the cheek. “C’mon Leo, time to go home.” I told him. He got up and brushed off his coat, “Finally.”

Elliot drove us home in his convertible. “Mom? Why were there all those guys in black suits at the wedding? They had those ear-things and looked like bodyguards”. I laughed, “you must be getting these stories from your father.” I just hope you didn’t notice their guns. Those were real bodyguards, but I suppose it was for the best. 

 “Hey dad, can you put down the top?” Leo asked smiling from the back seat. “What do you think, Mom?” Elliot asked me in a sweet voice. He knew I hated it when he called me mom, it made me think of those cheesy perfect family shows. I ignored him, “Anything you want, dad.” I responded smiling. He muttered under his breath and flipped a switch. The black top pulled back, letting the wind in. I unpinned my hair, letting it flow in the wind. Leo layed back, eyes closed and hands behind his head. I could only smile at his innocence. 

I thought about what might happen if anyone got Leo, they could use him against me, and I’d be helpless. I often thought about this, and always told myself the same thing, He’s too young to know about the R & J Wars. Elliot and I agreed not to tell him at all unless absolutely necessary or he started asking questions. But he had already started asking, being a very curious boy. What am I going to do? All my thoughts seem to end in a question. I stared at the passing landscape and suddenly noticed a black car with blacked out windows coming up behind us… fast. I quickly turned to check on Leo, he was asleep. I looked at Elliot, his eyes were intense, his grip tight on the steering wheel. He knew. I checked on the other car again, it was gaining. I thought, who’s he after? Then I realized who it was, “Elliot the shields! It’s…” … too late. Elliot set off the bullet- proof shielding, but it wasn’t going up fast enough. The other car had already pulled up next to ours and shot twice. They knew exactly whom they were aiming for. Leo! Elliot, we have to save him! but he couldn’t hear me, no one could. It’s getting dark, lights…. Fading…..Oh, Leo I’m so sorry. I turned around to face Leo, but all I saw was red, blood. It was the last thing I saw before the world turned black.

Chapter 7:1988

 Gryphon Mansion  (Prince Gang’s Headquarters), a large castle-like estate from the Middle Ages………

“What’s going, boss?” Julian asked looking towards the door through thin wire-framed glasses. He was sitting in the main room on the couch reading the newspaper. “Too much if you ask me.” Artemis answered softly. She walked past the main meeting room to her office at the end of the hall.

 Seven was leaning back in Artemis’s chair when she walked in. “Hey sis, I heard ‘bout Diane. Pretty cool, I gotta compliment Betsy on her handiwork.” Artemis hung her trench coat up, “what are you doing in here Seven? Didn’t I put you on assignment?” Seven stood up, “yeah, but nothings going down at Monty HQ, hey, what’s Ashe doing there anyway?” Artemis looked at him and motioned for him to move so she could sit down. He stood his ground, looking defiant. Artemis gave him that I’m-not-in-the-mood look. He backed off. 

Artemis picked up a file, labeled simply ‘9’ on it, “He’s working undercover as a Montague rookie.” Seven raised an eyebrow, “But he is a rookie!” Artemis didn’t look up, “I know, but they’d recognize anyone else.” Seven started walking around the office, looking at photos on the wall. Artemis put away the file she was reading into a file cabinet, then relocked it. “Don’t you have work to do” she asked looking at Seven. “Huh? oh right, see ya.” , and he walked out of the room. Artemis rolled her eyes and shook her head.

Artemis pressed the intercom button, a sweet voice came on, “Need anything?” “Send Maggrig in here.” she said after a moment. There was a pause, then Cleo responded, “He’s on his way, boss.” Just then, the door opened and in walked in a man about 6 ft. tall with deep brown eyes and short black hair. He wore all black, no surprise there, for all the years Artemis had known Maggrig, he’s never worn any color besides black and white. “You called?” he asked. Artemis nodded, “close the door.” He closed the door and looked at her, “What’s happening?” 

Artemis leaned back and sighed, “You know what happened to Diane. Celene and Donovan are up to something. I called you because we’re going on a mission.” Maggrig was actually stunned, “why? We never go on missions anymore. What’s so important that someone else can’t do it?” Artemis didn’t respond. A silence settled over the room, Artemis’s eyes seemed distant, as if listening for something. Then Artemis suddenly pulled her gun and fired.

Chapter 8: 1998

All I heard when I came to was the low humming of medical screens and machines. I opened my eyes with much effort. At first I couldn’t remember what had happened, then I heard someone muttering something. Then I saw that the Prince Gang was all in the room, and everyone looked solemn. I moaned, my head was pounding. I motioned to move my hand to my head, but found it held back. I looked around and saw Maggrig at one side of me and Elliot at the other. I could tell both hadn’t slept and Elliot looked as if he had been crying. Maggrig looked at me, “How are you feeling?” I didn’t answer his question, “Where’s Leo?” but my question faded when I looked at Elliot. I knew, I didn’t need to see his face to know Leo was gone.

I took Elliot in my arms and I just broke down and cried. I had held back my tears too long, I couldn’t hold them back anymore. Elliot just muttered, “I’m sorry, I don’t know who it was, but Leo……. He’s dead Artemis.” I just shook my head, “He’s not dead! He can’t be…… why Elliot? Why Leo?” I knew he was gone, I just didn’t want to believe it. I lost track of time, I didn’t care anymore. The war, the people, the deaths, none of it mattered. My son was dead.

I don’t know how long I layed there in Elliot’s arms, it might have been minutes, maybe hours. I didn’t know, I fell asleep. I dreamt, there was no guns, no blood, no gangs. I’m in a park, with Elliot and Leo. People are playing in the background. I’m sitting on a blanket, Elliot and Leo are throwing a Frisbee, Elliot overthrows and it goes into the street. Leo looks around, no cars in the street. He runs out into the street, and I see a black car coming down fast. I try to call Leo, but no sound comes out. “LEO!!!!!”, I wake up screaming.

I hear those hospital machines again. Everyone is gone except for Elliot. He holds me, “I’m all right”, I tell him, but I was lying. A doctor comes in asking to see Elliot. Elliot said he’d be back and walked out into the hallway. Maggrig came in from the hallway and sat down on the bed next to me, “I should’ve been there, I could’ve done something……” “No there wasn’t, you know that.”, I have to keep it together, my team needs me I tell myself. It’s probably the one thought that’s kept me from going off the edge already.

“This shouldn’t have happened, to you least of all.” Maggrig said shaking his head. “I knew the risks when we stared the Prince Gang.” I said, and I did know, but I never thought this’d happen. “I know this isn’t the time, but we have to find out who did this. They broke the truce when they did and we can’t have another war on our hands.” he said looking at me. “You’re damn right”, I told him, “and I intend to make them pay for what they’ve done to Leo.”

Chapter 9: 1988

A scream came from the hallway, along with the shatter of glass. Maggrig turned around towards the shattered door window. Artemis was now standing, her hands slammed against the desk, “Seven! I told you to leave!” Seven was on the floor with his hands over his head, he got up slowly, keeping an eye on Artemis. He just cursed and stamped off. Cleo was huddled in the corner, eyes wide. Artemis looked at her, “Cleo, be a darling and have that cleaned up. Oh, and order another window.” Cleo nodded nervously and ran off. 

When silence settled, except for the slow turning of the ceiling fan, Maggrig broke out laughing. Artemis leaned back in her chair and also started laughing. “Sorry, I couldn’t help it. He’s been eavesdropping so often, I just couldn’t stand it anymore.” Artemis walked over to the broken pane, “hmmmm …… I suppose I should’ve aimed for the wood.” Maggrig stood and joined her, “so us going on a mission was just a joke right?” Artemis didn’t look away from the door, “no, I meant it. We’re going on a mission, we’re going to visit some old friends.” Artemis picked up the phone and dialed the number of the Capulet headquarters.
Celene picked up, “Hello? Hi Artemis, good to hear from you. Sure, you can stay as long as you like. All right, I’ll have Shion pick you up. See you soon…” Just as their conversation ended Artemis heard a crash on the other line. She heard everything that happened, but she couldn’t tell who was dead. She quietly hung up the phone. 

“Maggrig, get your things packed, things are worse than I thought we’ll have to go immediately” Artemis said, walking out of her office and over the broken glass. Maggrig nodded, “Meet you back here in a half an hour?” Artemis agreed and left for her summer house/home. She bought the two-story house when the Prince Gang chose the old mansion as their headquarters. Her house was in Jamaica and it took too long to drive back and forth. Instead of taking the long drive, she stayed at her summerhouse since she needed to be closer to the mansion. So she practically lived in her summerhouse, going back to her legal home once a week just to check in on things. She had a maid come to clean the house once a week so she wouldn’t have to bother with it herself.            

Most of the other members lived in the mansion itself with a few exceptions. Maggrig lived in a house that seemed more like a cottage, in the woods that can only be reached by driving around the mansion. This is one of the houses in a complex of living quarters owned by the gang. This was how most of the people who didn’t live in the mansion chose to live. They were safe in the forest behind the mansion, any intruder would have to practically go through the mansion to get to the road that led to the housing area. There is only one road wide enough to fit any vehicle larger than a bike that led to the houses, which was always heavily guarded.

Others who lived in this complex were Julian, Lewis, Colleen, and Seven when he was around. Seven’s house was more of a storage building than a home, though. This complex would later expand as more people joined the gang. 

When Artemis arrived at her house, she took off her long trench coat and tossed it on the couch. She was never very neat. She rummaged through her closet in her hallway and pulled out a large suitcase from the back. She then went to her walk-in closet in her bedroom. She knelt down and moved a pile of junk to reveal a hidden doorway. She went in and took a dark suitcase from rows of the same exact looking case. Replacing everything where it was originally, she took the two suitcases to her front room. 

One suitcase held an already packed suitcase for traveling, the other held “supplies”. She took the two bags to her car, keeping the dark one at her side. Artemis glanced at her watch and headed back to the headquarters.

Chapter 10: 1998 

My heart was breaking, but I could only blame myself. If I hadn’t been involved with the R & J Wars this never would have happened. I could only think about Leo, his child-like smile, his always-cheerful nature.  I became a rage-consumed monster. All I wanted was revenge on the people who had done this. I started snapping at the people who cared about me most. 

A knock came on my office door. “Artemis?  Can I come in?” It was Elliot. “Just leave me alone.” I told him. I turned to face my window, it overlooked the housing complex that had grown from a few cottages to an expanse of over 20 separate houses. Members of the Prince gang were wandering around. I heard my door open and someone walk in, “Elliot, please just leave me alone.” I said still facing the window. He put his hands on my shoulders, “No, this isn’t a time for you to be alone. You haven’t slept well these past days, you shouldn’t even be here. It’s 11:00 at night. You should be at the hospital, or home resting. You’re not thinking straight, we can’t send out people to kill innocent people. We don’t know who did this, you can’t assume.” I turned around angry, “Yes, I can do this! Elliot, our son is buried in his grave because of this person! Don’t you understand? He is dead.” 

I knew I’d regret this immediately, but I didn’t. Maybe I was too involved to care about anything, or anyone. He walked out of the room shutting the door softly behind him without a word. I stared at the door, usually I’d go after him, but again, I was too blind to see what I was doing. 

I stared back out the window coldly.  After a few moments I sat down, picked up the phone and dialed. I waited for someone to pick up the phone. “Hello, Betsy? Things just got out of hand. Bring your team to the warehouse at Pier 16 at midnight.” I hung up and sat thinking. Pier 16 was where Betsy had first contacted me to ask for help against the Montagues. It was also where the R & J Wars had begun. I remember it as if it were yesterday….

It had started when the gang Morrigan had joined had gone to the warehouse to do some business for their leader. Though I don’t really remember his name… Aaron I think, but that’s not important. Anyhow, Maggrig and I had secretly been sent by Donovan to find out about the gang, so we had followed them to find out what was happening. When we came to the warehouse we hid behind some large crates. It turns out the “business” that their boss wanted them to take care of was a family. The family had heard something about an illegal operation and had planned to go to the police. So the boss decided that they knew too much and should be “taken care of”. They were killed before my eyes. Shot by the gang, Morrigan herself didn’t kill anyone, but she stood by and watched. I think that was when Morrigan lost her innocent heart. She had been scared and all I wanted to was run to her and tell her everything was all right, but a person never recovers from the shock of seeing someone killed. Morrigan was trying to hide her fright. She wasn’t the only one in shock. Maggrig had to keep me from running out of the building and getting us both killed. I could never forget one young boy in particular. He must have been the son of the couple who was already killed. He couldn’t have been older than ……Leo. Funny, it still hurts me to hear his name. You’d think after so many deaths, the pain would stop. Well, after he watched his parents die, he looked at me. At first I thought he was going to blow our cover, but he just stared at me, clutching something in his hand. I can still remember the boy’s eyes, staring at me, like he was saying, “Why is this happening to me?” All at once, havoc had let loose and in a split second, he was dead. In that one split second, I knew this kind of violence had to end. When the gang members left the warehouse, I ran to the boy. He had no pulse. He was dead. That thought still echoes in my mind today. I brushed his brown hair from his forehead and closed his eyes. Maggrig put his hand on my shoulder, it was time for us to leave. I was getting up when I remembered the boy had been holding something in his hand. It was a silver locket, probably belonging to his mother. I read the inscription inside and knew this boy deserved a better world than this. Maybe he would find it after death. I pray he would. I later found out this had been Donovan ’s sister, her husband, and the little boy had been his nephew. Maggrig had realized this and told me. Donovan wanted revenge. After he killed Aaron, Morrigan took his place. Donovan vowed to kill the people who had done this and anyone who stood in his way would pay dearly. Morrigan did not feel it was her fault, but Aaron had been a good person to Morrigan, and she became angry when he was killed. Aaron had taken her under his wing when she had no one to turn to.    

I thought about the incident then pulled out a necklace hidden by my shirt. It was the same locket, it reminded me of my promise to end the R & J Wars.  I opened it and started to read the inscription, My…, but I was interrupted by the phone ringing. I closed the locket and hid it back beneath my shirt. I picked up the phone, “hello?”  “Hi Artemis? We’re at the warehouse.” Betsy said from the other line. “Ok. I’ll be there in a little while.”    

Chapter 11: 1988

Artemis arrived at the HQ to find Maggrig already waiting for her. “What happened? How are things worse than before?” Maggrig asked. Artemis just said, “Get in the car, I’ll explain on the way.”  After she explained to Maggrig what she heard, Maggrig asked, “Is Donovan….” Artemis shook her head, “I don’t think so. I have to find out what happened.” They pulled up to the front gate of the Capulet estate. Artemis went through all the normal procedures to get in. When she got inside she went straight to the infirmary wing. “Celene, How’s Donovan?”, she said. Celene looked up, “Not well. He’s not going to be able to do anything for a while. So I’m taking over in the meantime.” Artemis nodded, that was probably best. 

The two settled into their rooms. In her room, Artemis opened her briefcase and took out a file, labeled ‘9’. She opened it and began to read when she heard a knock on the door. It was Maggrig. He sat down next to her, “what are you reading?” “A file, his name’s Elliot. I want him to join the Prince Gang, what do you think?” Artemis handed him the file. Maggrig started reading it. A slight man came in. He wore a long tailed burgundy coat and ruffled sleeves. His long brown hair was tied with a ribbon. An obvious artist. He made a dramatic bow, “Dinner is served.” Artemis laughed and got up. The man offered his arm. Artemis took it, “Why thank you Reg.” Maggrig just shook his head and followed. 

When they came to the dining hall Maggrig was actually in shock. It was the size of a theater. A long table was is the middle with expensive china, “Artemis, We should come here more often!” Maggrig exclaimed. The Capulets were already seated except for Celene and Donovan who would eat on their own. Betsy sat at the head, “As you all know we suffer the loss of Chien, but today we also the celebrate the newest member of our family, Tazi.” Betsy indicated towards a young thin girl. The others clapped. Later Artemis returned to her room.

Artemis picked up her phone and dialed the number of the Prince HQ. “Hello? Hi Louis. Tell Cleo to dial nine. She’ll understand.” Lewis, one of the newer members of the team, was writing everything down. She hung up the phone and decided to turn in. “Everything’s fine considering. Both teams need time to recover, so it should be quiet for awhile.”, Artemis thought to herself laying in bed.

Chapter 12: 1998

I drove to the Pier in silence. When she arrived she saw Betsy and her team, Shion, Falcon, Reg, and Tazi. All the best fighters of the Capulets. The team I had gathered were no rookies either. I had called Maggrig, Julian, Lewis, Colleen and Yurii. I had also called Ashe, Cleo, and though I didn’t want to, Seven and Angel. I didn’t want to spoil their honeymoon but I needed everyone I could get. “I take it there is no need for introductions.”, I said, everyone agreed.  “I called you here because of Betsy’s thought that the Montagues have regrouped and are planning to take out the Capulets.”, everyone began to murmur. I called their attention, “I know this is a serious accusation, but I now know this is true. As you know I was shot and Leo killed. However, before they shot us I saw the gun, and the gunman. I thought they were aiming for Leo, but then I saw it, the person’s hand was bandaged. In the person’s right hand holding the gun. 

“From that moment I knew it was Diane. She had killed Leo, and tried to kill me.” Shouts of surprise came from the Capulets and my fellow Prince members.  Everyone knew Diane always wore a bandage on her hand after being shot by Betsy so many years ago. I held my arm up for silence, the talking faded away. Falcon called out, “Wait, you said you thought she was aiming for Leo.” I looked at him. “Yes that’s what I thought. You know the red light of the target of a gun”, everyone knew of it, “I had seen it in the side view mirror aimed at Leo. Then I realized at that last moment she hadn’t shot Leo, that she was really trying to kill me. You see, there was someone else in that car. That person had used another gun on Leo to make me think Diane was trying to kill him, making me turn around to try and warn him. Then Diane shot, hoping to kill me, and she would have been successful except that I had turned back around to tell Elliot to put up the shields. She missed only skimming my head, not killing me.” 

I had stopped talking, everyone began whispering. Falcon, once a private detective, started piecing it together, “Wait, who’s the other person, the one who shot Leo? Also, why are they trying to kill you?” “I don’t know, I think maybe Sterling. He’s still mad at the Capulets for killing Cyrus and Kain. And we all know he has the skills to shoot from a moving vehicle.”, I replied after a thought, “They’re trying to kill me because I would try and prevent the destruction of the teams. Another thing I must tell you is these people acted alone. Morrigan wouldn’t have me killed, even though I prevented her from getting her revenge on Donovan. I also know Constance, Requiem, Kash, and the others had nothing to do with this.” Everyone agreed with my theory. 

Just then Morrigan walked in with a group of Montagues. The Capulets started for their guns, as did the Prince Gang. “Everyone stop!” I yelled, “I called them here. They are part of this too. They were betrayed by their own team members.” Most of them put away their guns.  “Now to tell them the bad news”, I said to myself. “People, listen to me.” I pulled out my gun and shot up. Aha! I thought, that had gotten their attention. “Ok, now this is the hard part for me to tell you. Look around, if you’ve noticed I called specific people to come here tonight.”, everyone looked at each other and nodded, “Well, every person not here, with the exception of Celene and Donovan, are traitors.”     

Chapter 13: 1990

Two years later…

Artemis had been right, for the next two years the Montagues and Capulets were silent. There were no crossing of territory, no drivebyes, no shooting. There was actual peace. Artemis decided it was time to call together the leaders. She called Morrigan, then Celene, who was still in control because Donovan ’s wound was permanent, making him too weak most of the time to lead the Capulets. She called them to come to her house in Jamaica. 

Artemis had people posted everywhere. Celene and Donovan came with Falcon, and Morrigan came with Diane and Requiem. They all gathered in her dining room. “Ok, I called you here for a truce. We have been peaceful for the last two years and I rather like it. Don’t you agree?” Celene and Donovan agreed, so did Morrigan and Requiem.  “This is just a formality to keep that peace and finally forgive each other.” 

They all looked at each other, Celene was the first to speak, “ok, I’ll sign.” Donovan talked to Morrigan, “I can never forget what you did, but I realized laying in the infirmary that it wasn’t you I’m mad at, so I’ll sign.” Morrigan signed next, “Aaron was a father I never had, but I know he had set his own future.”  Requiem didn’t need to say it, he was tired of fighting, and he signed under Morrigan’s name. Falcon also said nothing but signed. When Artemis gave Diane the paper and pen, Diane merely looked at it. She looked hard at Morrigan “Do you really want to do this? He killed Aaron. He raised us, he cared for us! How can you do this to him?” Morrigan put her hand on Diane’s shoulder, “It’s over Diane. Nobody can change what happened, but I don’t want to fight anymore, I’ve fought my whole life. I want nothing more but to lay my gun down. Please Diane, sign.” Diane looked around one more time and signed the paper.  

This peace lasted until today when Diane broke the agreement. 

At the Pier, 8 years later…

“Yes, everyone here are people you can trust. Take a good look, know that these are your allies.” I told everyone. I knew people were seeing who wasn’t here, which of their friends were their enemies. I waited for someone to realize a certain fact, it was Seven who realized it, “Hey Artemis, where’s Elliot?” This caught the attention of the 20+ people. I looked around sadly at my friends “I have not called Elliot here because he does not belong here. He is an enemy.” I said this last line more tying to convince myself than telling the others. Everyone in the room looked at me, some with sadness in their eyes, some with pity.

 “I first realized this when Diane was first driving up. I knew because I shouldn’t have had to tell Elliot to put up the shields. And if he thought we were in immediate danger, the obvious response would have been to floor the brakes and the other car would’ve taken a while to get back, giving the shields enough time to go up. The one thing that made my suspicion definite was that Diane hadn’t tried to kill him. Everyone knows the first thing professional killers do is take out the driver.” All the people in the warehouse soon realized this was true. Seven was also the one to bring up the question I couldn’t figure out. He yelled out of nowhere, “Why would he want you killed, and why his own son?” I loved my brother for asking what I couldn’t. I told them the truth, “I don’t know.”

Chapter 14: 1998

What I had told these people just started going through my own mind for the first time. This is the first time I looked at myself and said, “your husband and friends are traitors. What are you going to do about it?” I just didn’t know the answer. Betsy walked up to me, “I’m sorry about Elliot. I’ve called Celene and Donovan and told them everything, they’re on their way. They deserve to know.” I merely nodded and muttered, “of course”. At this time Morrigan took over, seeing my self-realization. 

“People”, she said, “We can’t just ignore this, and we can’t start another 10 year war. If we fight, we go at it once. It’s all or nothing. If you want to leave, go now.” No one moved. “Good, we need everyone of you. There could be less than us, more than us, or we can go equally at each other’s throats. I warn you now there can be hundreds of them, but I know each one of you had joined a team because you have a skill. This is when you’re going to need it. …” Morrigan kept going for a while. Artemis smiled inwardly as best she could under the circumstances, “she always was a good inspirational speaker.” By the time the sun was rising, everyone was ready to fight any odds. 

Artemis finally gathered herself and went to the platform Morrigan was using, “Everyone, you know we can’t go into this blind. We can either find their headquarters, if they have one, or make a meeting for battle.” I’d hoped I’d never have to use the word battle again I thought, but I kept going, “I suggest a full scale formal war. Beginning to end, until one side gives up.” Everyone agreed that a face off was best. Trying to sneak in that many people was too risky. A good question was raised, “Why would Elliot want to destroy the Capulets?” “I think I can answer that.”, everyone turned towards the doorway to see who had spoken. 

I waited for the person to step forward. I first saw Celene, then Donovan, but I know that it wasn’t their voices who had spoken, but then who... My answer came soon after, Donovan introduced the person, “People, I’d like you to meet a man risen from the dead, ….” He never got to finish. An old man in a dark suit stepped forward. Morrigan ran into his arms, “Aaron!”  

Chapter 15: 1998

I walked over to the gathering crowd. The original leader of the Montagues, though not called the Montagues at the time, had indeed risen from his grave. I walked over to Donovan. Donovan explained, “When I found out that Diane, and Elliot, were the culprits of the murder I called Aaron. You see, I couldn’t kill him. You see, he’s my uncle. Despite all my rage, I couldn’t do it.” No one said anything, after all that had happened, anything seemed possible. Donovan continued, “I have simply moved him to a well secluded, well protected area upstate. I knew Aaron could at least try and talk to Diane, he did practically raise her after all. The one thing that I just found out myself may come as a surprise to you all. Aaron is also Elliot’s father” 

Now this I was surprised to hear and I voiced it, “Donovan, but that makes you his brother, half-brother at least. And wouldn’t Elliot have been against you all along then, or told someone?” He looked at me and began to speak but Aaron cut in, “Ahem, I think I can explain this part. You see, Elliot never knew I was his father. After he was born his mother left me and my life of crime and married another man. Never telling Elliot about me, and well, he was happy. How could I interfere, especially after I was kidnapped.”, he glared at Donovan. I thought a moment, “Wait, could he have somehow found out? That would explain why he would want to take out the Capulets.” Aaron shrugged, “I suppose so, though I don’t know how unless his mother told him.” 

This began to puzzle me, “why would she have told him?” I asked myself. Then I realize she never had, not directly anyhow. “I know now how he found out! On his left wrist I noticed he started wearing a silver ID bracelet. When I asked him about it he had told me it belonged to his father, but when I read the inscription it said, ‘to my darling A.L.’, and that wasn’t his father’s initials. I always thought his mother had received it from her father and had given it to him.” I looked to see how Aaron had reacted, but he just had a distant look in his eyes, “She was going to give that to me as a wedding gift when she found out I was in crime…” 

I touched his arm, he looked at me sadly. I sighed, “Well, we can’t have you talk to Diane without Elliot seeing you. I’ve known him long enough to say he won’t exactly be happy to see you. You never told him the truth, and Donovan, he’ll think you knew that Aaron is his father and kept Elliot from knowing. Things would just get worse. Though I don’t know how that’s even possible.” I heard someone enter the room, it was Ashe, “Boss, he’s agreed to the terms and will be there at the requested time.” Everyone looked at me strangely, I suppose now ’s the time to tell them, “I’ve set the time and place for the battle. We fight in 3 days, right here. Face-to-face.” Commotion began all at once. I don’t know we would be ready in 3 days, but better than putting it off. 

I decided to take charge, I stepped back up on the podium, “People, I have given us three days to prepare for war. Get all the supplies you will need. We meet back here at 11:00, exatly one hour before midnight. Exactly one hour before we fight. Remember, these are no longer your friends but your enemies, I don’t care how close you were, they will try and kill you. Do not let them.”Morrigan’s not the only leader with a voice around here. Everyone left the warehouse early that morning, to maybe say goodbye to their loved ones. I sat down and realized I was alone. My son is dead, my husband the person I’m trying to destroy. The warehouse seemed empty, but I saw a shadow hanging over me and looked up. Aaron looked back “You’re still my daughter-in-law. I’m proud to have you as my family. I’m just sorry my grandson can’t be here, or my son.”       
Chapter 16: 1998

Two days later……

I got to talk to Aaron, to learn about my real father-in-law. And to think, my goal in life was at first to stop men like this, who had destroyed innocent people. This I still wanted to accomplish, but I had forgiven Aaron. Over those two days, as we prepared, I learned that Aaron regretted all he’s done, and tried to mend his ways. His biggest regret was loosing Rebecca, Elliot’s mother. Though it took him a while to realize what he was doing. It was when he had destroyed his own niece and her family did he see what he was doing. I think Donovan had realized this too, and that was the real reason he let Aaron live. How ironic that the incident that stopped one man’s war had begun another.   

The third day Aaron passed away. He had been suffering from heart problems, and his heart finally failed, at least not before letting the truth be known. The funeral was small and quick since that night we would face Elliot and his forces. After the service Maggrig drove me home. Only 1 hour until 11:00. I changed clothes quickly and was ready to fight the man I had loved for so long. It’s wrong to say I loved him, I still love him and it troubled me on the way to the warehouse that in the end, could I pull the trigger on him? When we arrived there, I saw that almost everyone was already there. I walked around and gave encouraging words to my friends. I see former enemies talking, even laughing together. It had taken another war to bring together these feuding families. We had found our Romeo and Juliet, too bad they came in the form of a war. When it is over, these Montagues, and these Capulets will walk away hand in hand not mattering if victorious or not. 

I see Betsy and my own team member, Lewis, walking together over there. Cleo and Reg laughing over some joke I’m sure, but the most wonderful scene I see is Donovan and Morrigan working together. What was the saying? My enemy’s enemy is my best friend. It breaks my heart that any of these fine people may not be here come sunrise.

From this point all we could do is wait. I spot Maggrig at the edge of the group alone. I walk over, “Maggrig, I need you to do something for me.” He tuned and faced me, “should I not make it, I want you to take care of the survivors. In wartime I’d usually say take care of my family, but I suppose these people are all I have. Take care of them.” He would have stopped me the moment I started. I’ve been in situations like this before, but never was I so afraid, or alone. He knew it too. I felt there was more I should say but couldn’t find the words, he said what I could not, “We had our first assignment here Artemis, don’t make this our last.” I looked at him, “You’ve been here at my side the whole time, I just wanted to thank you.” He leaned closer, “I will always be at your side.” Then he bent his head and kissed me. This felt so right. He made me feel safe. I heard Betsy shout that it was time. I had a future to fight for now. I hugged Maggrig, he held me close and asked me, “ready?” I looked into his eyes, “As I’ll ever be.”

Chapter 17: 1998        
We walked into the factory. I saw them coming. Elliot in the lead, Diane by his side. The fear I had was gone, as was any love I felt for him “Elliot. We don’t have to do this.” He looked back coldly, “Yes we do.” Diane stepped forward, “For Aaron!” I whispered to myself, “yes for Aaron.” With that the war had begun. 

Diane ran straight for Donovan who was already being mobbed. He rather reminded me of the sickly Doc Holiday at his last battle.  I didn’t see who I was shooting at, or whom I had just kicked in the jaw. People were dying all around me. I jumped to avoid tripping over bodies who might be my best friend I wouldn’t know. I saw Elliot and knew this was the end, do I shoot, or lay down my gun. The world around me faded, it was only him and me. 

I had my gun pointed at him, I knew once I shot him, this was over. The question was could I shoot him. He stared at me his brown eyes dancing, “You can’t kill me. I know you still love me. Get out of here and let me win this war.” I saw Diane coming near me. He was trying to distract me, “You know you can’t pull that trigger, think of when we were together. You haven’t got it in you.” Diane was coming closer. I saw Maggrig behind her. He looked at me seeming to say, “It’s up to you. Do we stop this now?” But I also saw fear in his eyes that he would lose me. I looked back at Elliot, “I know once I fire this gun you’re dead, but so am I.” He had a smile on his face, like he already knew I wouldn’t shoot. I realized the fighting around us had stopped. Everyone was looking at us. It was up to me.

My hand trembled slightly. Elliot looked at me, “What’s it going to be?” My mind flashed back to me and him snuggling close to the fireplace on cold winter nights, when he cooked me breakfast in bed on Valentine’s day, when he proposed to me on my birthday, when I would sit on a blanket in the park watching him and Leo throw a frisbee……Leo. I started remembering Leo and I knew my choice. I looked at Maggrig with tears in my eyes and whispered, “I love you.” and I pulled the trigger. I heard a gun shoot and someone yell my name, I dreamt one last time.

I saw Leo laughing and throwing a frisbee, but it wasn’t Elliot catching it, but Aaron. I felt someone put their hand on my shoulder, I saw a pretty woman with warm brown eyes, I knew it was Rebecca, she was smiling. Leo ran into my arms and said, “I love you, mom” I was finally home with my family.

Epilogue

Maggrig dropped a rose on the casket, deep within the earth. There was a moment of silence, then he thought a moment and pulled something out of his pocket. It was a necklace. He had seen Artemis wear it all the time, for the first time he opened the heart shaped locket and read the inscription aloud, “My only dream, my only wish, came true when you created a world where we could live forever.” 
